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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Stalements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying. financial statements of Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statcment and the
Statement of Changes in Bquity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our infermation and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
{“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a frue and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its
profit including other comprchensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on thar date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial stateinents in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opimion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Vatter - Income tax search

We draw allcntion to Note 34A of the financial statements relating to a search under Section 132 of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 conducted by the Income Tax Department on the Company’s Premises and other
Locations and few of its group entities and residence of few of its key managerial personnel.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon,
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Qur opinion on the financial statemenis does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtaincd in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we arc required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair vicw of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indtan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsiblc for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends Lo liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic altcrnative but to do so.

These Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finuncial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatemenls can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be cxpected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an aundit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a matcrial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continuc as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, siructure and comient of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a stalcment that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought lo bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), 1ssued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matiers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, (o the extent applicable, that:

{(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of thuse books cxeept for, backup of books of accounts
in respect of one of the accounting software has not been maintained on server physically
located in Tndia and for the matters stated in the paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule

11{g).

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;
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(4} In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with thc Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(¢) The matter described in Emphasis of Matter - Income tax search above, in our opinion, may
have an adverse effect on the functoning of the company;

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the dircclors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualificd as on
March 31, 2024 (rom being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these inancial
stalements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2 to this report;

(h) Themodification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other mattcrs connected therewith

are as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
({){vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

(i) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the ycar ended March 31, 2024 has been paid
/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of scetion 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

(j) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given fo us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statcments — Refer Note 34A to the financial statements,

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which wcre required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (eithcr from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person{s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
hehalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any gnarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represcnted that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entittes (“Funding Partics”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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Vi,

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software except that, as described in note 41 to the financial
statements, audit trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data when using certain
access rights and also for certain changes made using privileged/ administrative access
right and, in respect of a software used for maintenance of inventories for select customers.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with except that we are unable to comment on the same in respect
of the software used to maintain the information as explained in the above note.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

sl

per Vishal Sharma

Partner

Membership Number: 096766
UDIN: 24096766BKFFRS2263

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: May 15,2024
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Annexure ‘1° referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other Iegal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (‘the Company”}

In ¢erms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

(1)(a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, ncluding guantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(1)(@)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(1}(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year
and no matenal discrepancies were identificd on such verification.

(i)(c) The title deeds of all the immeovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the
Comparty.

(1)(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets)
or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2024,

(i)(e) There are no proceedings initialed or are pending against the Company for holding any benamsi
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transaclions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i1)(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year except for goods
in transit. [n our opinion the frequency of verification by the management is reasonable and the coverage
and procedurc of such verification by the management is appropriate and discrepancies of 10% or more
in aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed on such physical verification. Goods in transit
have been reccived subsequent to the year ended March 31, 2024,

(i)(b) The Company has not beern sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs, five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of sccurity
of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii){b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

{iii)(a) During the year, the Company has provided loan to ifs employses as follows:

Particulars Loans in Rs, Lacs
Aggregate amount granted during the year

- Others (loan to employees) 1.20

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above

cases

- Others (loan to employees) _ Nil

During the year, the Company has not provided any other advances in nature of loans, stood guarantee
or provided securities to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties and hence
not commented upon.
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(iii)(b) During the year the investments made, and the terms and cenditions of loans given to its
employees are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. During the year, the Company has not provided
guarantees, provided securities and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companics,
firms, limited Hability partnerships or any other parties and hence not commented upon

(iii){c) In respect of a loan granted to employees, the schedule of repayment of principal has been
stipulated in the arrangement and the repayment or receipts are regular. These loans are interest free
and accordingly reporting on repayment of interest is not commented upon, The Company has not
granted advance in the nature of loan to companies, firms, Limited Li ability Partncrships or any other
parties hence not commented upon.

(iii)(d) There are no amounts of loans to employees which are outstanding for more than 50 days.

(ifi)(e) There are no loans to its employees which was fallen due during the year, that have been renewed
or extended or fresh loan granted to settle overdue of existing loan given to its employee.

(iii)(f) The Company bas not granted any loans or advances in (he nature of loans, either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnetships or any other parties other than loans to employecs as mentioned in clause (iii} {a) above.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) lnvestment in respect of which provision of 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are apphicable have
been complied with by the Company. The Company has not given any loan to director or to a company
in which director is interested to which provision of section 185 of the Companies Act apply and hence
not commented upon, The Company has not made any guarantee or provided any security to which
provision of section 186 apply and hence not commented upon.

(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepled any amounts which
are deemed to he deposits within the meaning of scctions 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules
made thereunder, to the cxtent applicable, Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1} of the
Companies Act, 2013, related to the manufacture of pharmaceutical products and related services, and
are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained.
We have not, however, made a dctailed examination of the same.

(vii){a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duly of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
other statutory dues have gencrally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though
there has becn a slight delay in a few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by
us, undisputed dues in respect of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state Insurance,
income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
statutory dues which were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable, are as follows:

JR—
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Statement of Arrears of Statutory Dues Outstunding for More than Six Months

Name of the Statute Nature of the [ Amount | Period to | Due Date  of
Dues (Rs.in which the | Date Payment
Lacs) amount relates
Payment of Bonus Act, | Payment of 1 16.74 2014-15 2014-15 | Not yet
1956 as amended Statulory Bonus paid

(vii){b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees” state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues
have not becn deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Amount of Demand Period to Forum where
without netting of | Amount paid | which  the | .. whet
, ) dispute  1s
Name  of amount paid under | under protest amount .
Nature of dues pending
Statute protest relates
. . (Financial
(Rs. in Lacs) {Rs. in Lacs) Year)
Income Disallowances 99.04 2016-17 Assessing
Tax  Act, | and additions to Officer,
1961 taxable income Income Tax |
Income Disallowances 12.73 2018-19 Asscssing
Tax  Act, | and additions to Officer,
1961 {axable income ) fncome Tax
Income Disallowances 54.92 - | 2021-22 Asscssing
Tax  Act, | and additions to Officer,
1961 tuxable income Income Tax

(viii) The Company has not surrendered or discloscd any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the {ax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(a) The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings or interest thereon due to any
lender during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause ix(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

{ix){b) The Company has not been declarcd wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
govermment or any government authority.

(ix){¢) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the ycar hence, the requirement
to report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Compary.

(ix)(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of thc Company, no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(ix)(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or 1o mect the obligations of its subsidiary. The
Company does not have associates or joint ventures.
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(ix)(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of sccurities held in its
subsidiaries company. Hencc, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(x){a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x}(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(x)(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{(xi)(a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(x1)(b) During the year, no report under sub-scetion (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed by cost auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(xi)(c) As represented to us by thc management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement 1o report on clause 3(xii)(a) to {c} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv}(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and naturc of its
business.

(xiv}(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit repot, for the period
under audit have been considered by us.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its dircclors or persons connected

with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv} of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi}(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(xvi}(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activitics.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clausc {xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi}(c) The Company is not a Core Investiment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve

Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the QOrder is not applicable to
the Company.

(xvi}{d) The Group does not have more than one CIC as part of the Group, hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year. The Company has not
incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with
second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 37 to
the financial statements.

(xx)(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred
to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act.
This matter has been disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

o el e =

per Vishal Sharma

-Partner

Membership Number: 096766 : ik
UDIN: 24096766BKFFRS2263 igped 6‘\ 7
Place of Signature: New Delhi ]
Date: May 15, 2024
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF COPMEY) PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clausc (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with rclerence o financial statements of Copmed
Pharmaceuticals Privatc Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

'The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate iniernal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and cofficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
rimely preparation of reliable finaneial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Respensibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statcments based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Nole on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under scotion 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
{o an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAT Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internai comtrol based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is sutficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for extemnal purposes in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of rccords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable . '
assurance that iransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparalion of financial statements in's
accordance with gencrally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
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company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAIL

For 8.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

NIV

per Vishal Sharma

Partner

Membership Number: 096766 S o
UDIN: 24096766BKFFRS2263 §1 ¢ 6\
Place of Signature: New Delhi LVl

Date: May 15, 2024 i



Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

As at As at
Particulars Notes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 4,266.93 4,325.68
Capital work-in-progress 3 808.43 37.83
Intangible assets 4 1.86 1.83
Right-of-use assets 5 113.54 114.19
Financial assets
Investment in subsidiaries 6(a) 918.93 948.68
Other Investments 6(b) 0.25 0.25
Other financial assets 7 52.78 4,741.16
Income tax assets (net) 8 31.39 23.29
Other non-current assets 9 21.31 11.17
Total non-current assets 6,215.42 10,204.08
Current assets
Inventories 10 6,033.83 5,473.66
Financial assets
Trade receivables 11 5,144.95 5,396.93
Cash and cash equivalents 12 724,71 703.16
Other bank balances 13 11,633.76 4,925.26
Other financial assets 7 2.80 7.16
Other current assets 9 769.47 662.44
Total current assets 24,309.52 17,168.61
Assets held for sale - 12.78

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

30,524.94

—  wizesaz

Equity
Equity share capital 14 96.00 96.00
Other equity 15 22,389.54 18,140.02
Total equity 22,485.54 18,236.02
LIABILITES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 17 15.51 15.52
Provisions 18 122,07 112.88
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 19 40.66 51.90
Other non-current liabilities 20 71.37 81.06
Total non-current liabilities 249.61 261.36
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 17 0.78 0.90
Trade payables 21
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 213.54 451.60
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 6,740.34 8,137.18
enterprises
Others 22 600.46 68.09
Provisions 18 116.33 112.23
Income tax liabilities (net) 8 74.45 63.26
Other current liabilities 20 43.89 54.83
Total current liabilities 7,789.79 8,888.09
Total liabilities B,039.40 9,149.45
Total equity and liabilities 30,524.94 27,385.47

Summary of material accounting policies 2
3-42

Other notes on accounts
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

2 Year ended Year ended
Paytieters Notes 34 March 2024 31 March 2023
I Revenue from operations 23 44,941.84 34,820.93
II Other income 24 1,340.98 718.61
III Total income (I + II) 46,282.82 35,539.54
IV Expenses
Cost of raw materials and component consumed 25 35,895.08 27,885.00
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 26 156.44 112.12
Employee benefits expense 27 2,265.77 1,970.18
Finance costs 28 50.75 69.14
Depreciation and amortization expense 29 388.27 350.92
Other expenses 30 2,006.52 1,662.91
Total expenses (IV) 40,762.83 32,050.27
V' Profit before tax (III-IV) 5,519.99 3,489.27
VI Tax Expense:
Current tax 31 1,315.82 825.18
Deferred tax 31 (20.21) 25.60
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 31 1.54 (0.26)
Total tax expense (VI) 1,297.15 850.52
VII Profit for the year (V-VI) 4,222.84 2,638.75
VIII Other comprehensive income
(i) Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss )
- Remeasurement gain / (loss) of the defined benefit plan 35A 35.65 1.32
(ii) Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss
- Remeasurement of the defined benefit plan 31.2 (8.97) (0.33)
Other comprehensive income for the year (VIII) 26.68 0.99
IX Total comprehensive income for the year (VII + VIII) 4,249.52 2,639.74
Earnings per equity share (EPS) (face value of INR 100 each)
Basic EPS (in INR) 4,398.79 2,748.70
Diluted EPS (in INR) 4,398.79 2,748.70
Summary of material accounting policies 2
Other notes on accounts 3-42

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended 31 March 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

A.Cashflow from operating activities

Profit before tax 5,519.99 3,489.27
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 388.27 350.92
MNet foreign exchange differences (71.78) 60.70
Loss/ (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (0.91) (2.82)
Finance income (738.37) (425.15)
Finance costs = 16.63
Interest on lease liabilities 1.32 1.31
Dividend income from financial assets measured at FVTPL (0.09) (0.09)
Government grant income 9.69 13.09
Share in profit/ loss of partnership firms (net) (495.26) (261.52)
Weorking capital adjustments:
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables 311.29 683.27
{Increase)/ Decrease in inventories (560.17) 1,124.14
(Increase)/ Decrease in financial asset - others 4.36 3.64
(Increase)/ Decrease in other asset (106.85) (126.42)
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions 48.94 60.35
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payable (1,622.92) (141.68)
Increase/ (Decrease) in other liability (30.32) 78.54
2,669.66 4,924.18
Income tax paid (1,314.27) (867.70)
Net cash flows from operating activities (A) 1,355.39 4,056.48
B.Cashflow from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 30.66 16.76
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (607.85) (459.56)
Purchase of financial instruments ’ 525.01 294.98
Dividend received 0.09 0.09
Loan to other parties (net) - 2.27
Bank deposit not considered as cash and cash equivalents (net) (1,955.01) (5,321.42)
Interest received (finance income) 673.26 360.04
Net cash flows flow investing activities (B) {1,333.84) (5,106.84)
C.Cashflow from financing activities
Interest paid - (16.63)
Repayment of Current borrowings - (51.35)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (C) - (67.98)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 21.55 (1,118.34)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 703.16 1,821.50
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 724,71 703.16
Components of Cash and cash equivalents :
Balances with banks
- In current account 723.05 701.12
Cash in hand 1.66 2.04
724.71 703.16

The above statement of cash flows has been prepared using "Indirect method" set out in applicable Ind AS 7, "Statement of Cash

Flows".

Summary of material accounting policies

Other notes on accounts 3-42

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

a.

Equity share capital

Particulars Amount
Equity shares of INR 100 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at 01 April 2022 96.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
As at 31 March 2023 96.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
As at 31 March 2024 gggn
Other equity
Reserves and Surplus
Particulars - - Total
General reserve Retained earnings
Balance as at 01 April 2022 681.48 14,818.80 15,500.28
Profit for the year - 2,638.75 2,638.75
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax - 0.99 0.99
Total comprehensive income for the year - 2,639.74 2,639.74
Balance as at 31 March 2023 681.48 17,458.54 18,140.02
Profit for the period/year ~ 4,222.84 4,222.84
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax - 26.68 26.68
Total compret ive | for the year = 4,249.52 4,249.52
Balance as at 31 March 2024 681.48 21,708.06 22,389.54

Summary of material accounting policies
Other notes on accounts

3-42

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

1

2.01

2.02

2.03

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited ("the Company”) (CIN No.- U74B99DL198BPTC033151) was incorporated on 13 September, 1988 under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office at 208, Okhla Industrial Estate, Phase-11I New Delhi - 110020, India. It is a
Subsidiary Company of Mankind Pharma Limited. The Company is engaged in the manufacturing of pharmaceutical products and calibration services for
plant and equipments.

The financial statements were authorised by the Board of Directors for issue in accordance with resolution passed on May 15, 2024,

Material Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years except where newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted.

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation reguirements of Division 11 of Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III). These financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs
(INR D0D,000), except when otherwise indicated.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following assets and liabilities:
i) Certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value

i) Assets held for sale-measured at fair value less cost to sell

iii) Defined benefit plans-plan assets measured at fair value

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non- current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for purpose of trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve maonths after the reporting period, or

- cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non current.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are classified as non- current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. the Company has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Capital work in progress is
stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises of purchase price, taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses
directly attributable and related to acguisition and installation of the concerned assets and are further adjusted by the amount of input tax credit availed
wherever applicable.

Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing eosts for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based
on their specific useful lives, Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment
as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present
value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a
provision are met.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under development as at the balance sheet date.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.




Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

2.04

2.05

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on prorata basis on straight-line method using the useful lives of the assets estimated by
management. The useful life is as follows:

Assets Useful life (in years)
Buildina 30

Plant and Equipment 15
Furniture and Fixtures 10

Vehicles 8-10

Office Equipment 5

Electrical equipment and fittings 10
Computers 3

Network and servers 5

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's expert. The residual values are not more than 5% of
the original cost of the assets. The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate.

Leasehold land is amortized on a straight line basis over the unexpired period of their respective lease of 90 to 99 years.

Intangible assets
Separately acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Cost of intangible assets acquired in business combination is their fair
value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development cost, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is
reflected in statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost
of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their useful economic
lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the
amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization
period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Gains or losses arising from disposal of the intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the assets are disposed off,

Intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful life as under
Assets Useful life (in years)

Computer Software 3

Impairment of non- financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's receverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’'s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company's
CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a
long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods
covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for
subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
products, industries, or country or countries in which the Company operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for
properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of
any previous revaluation surplus.




Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

2.06

(i)

For assets excluding intangible assets having indefinite life, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not
exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or eguity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss)
- Those measured at amortized cost

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company's
business model for managing them.

Initial recognition and measurement

With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical
expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient and are measured
at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115, Refer to the accounting policies in section 'Revenue from contracts with customers'.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are 'solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an
instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.

The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows, The business
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in following categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments)

--Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity
instruments)

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) Business Model Test : The objective is to hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the
instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realize its fair value changes) and;

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

This category is most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.
The EIR amortization is included in other income in profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI) (debt instruments)
A ‘financial asset’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if bath of the following criteria are met:

a) Business Model Test : The objective of financial instrument is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets; and

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the Debt instrument give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.




Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Debt instrument included within the FYTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are
recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI), except for the recognition of interest income, impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange
gains or losses which are recognized in statement of profit and loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised

cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI, Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCI is reclassified
from the equity to profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to

classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment
has been established.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or ,where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.
removed from the Company's statement of financial position) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass through” arrangement and either;

{a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained,

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with IND AS 109, the Company applies expected credit losses( ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the
following financial asset and credit risk exposure

- Financial assets measured at amortized cost;
= Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income(FVTOCI);

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

The Company follows "simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
- Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables;

= All lease receivables resulting from the transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116 -Leases

Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes In credit risk. Rather , it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the
portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivable and is

adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward looking
estimates are analysed.




Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(ii)

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This
amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments
is described below:

(a) Financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off
criteria, the group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount,

(b) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as a
liability.

{c) Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI, the expected credit losses do not
reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that
would arise if the asset was measured at amortised cost is recognised in other comprehensive income as the accumulated
impairment amount,

Financial liabilities:
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, trade payables, trade deposits,
retention money, liabilities towards services, sales incentive and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categorias:
(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(ii) Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedaing
instruments in hedge relationshio as defined by Ind AS 109. The separated embedded derivate are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss,

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and
only if the criteria in IND AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognized in OCI, These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or
lass within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. the Company has not designated any
financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Trade Payables

These amounts represents liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts
are unsecured and are usually paid within 60 to 90 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is
not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
Effective interest rate method.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financials assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enfarceable legal right to
offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Reclassification of financial assets/ financial liabilities

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's
senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company's
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform
an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting peried following the change in business model. The Company does not
restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.
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2.07 Investment in Subsidiaries

The investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost as per IND AS 27. The Company regardless of the nature of its involvement with an entity (the
investee), determines whether it is a parent by assessing whether it controls the investee. The Company controls an investee when it is expesed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee, Thus,
the Company controls an investee if and only if it has all the following:

(a) power over the investee;

(b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and

(c} the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the returns,

Investments are accounted in accordance with IND AS 105 when they are classified as held for sale. On disposal of investment, the difference between
its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss

2.08 Inventories

a) Basis of valuation:

Inventeries are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing cost of ohsolescence, if any. However, materials
and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they

will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-
by-item basis.

b) Method of Valuation:

i) Cost of raw materials has been determined by using moving weighted average cost method and comprises all costs of purchase,
duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

=

Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes direct labour and an appropriate share of fixed and variable production
overheads and excise duty as applicable. Fixed production overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production
facilities. Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis.

iii) Met realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.09 Taxes

a)

b)

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. Tax expense for the year
comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax
Current income tax, assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities in accordance

with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS) enacted in India by using tax rates and the tax laws that
are enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to item recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or equity).Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transactions either in OCI or directly in equity.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred
income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

i} In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of

the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
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i} When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that

is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

ii) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax

2.10

assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no lenger probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized, Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside the statement of profit and loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or direct in equity.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently
if new information about facts and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwill
related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date. If the carrying
amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain
purchase gains. All other acquired tax benefits realized are recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue from contract with customers

The Company manufactures/ trades and sells a range of pharmaceutical and healthcare products. Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale
of these products is recognized at a point in time when control of the product has been transferred, and there are no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer's acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the products are shipped to specific location and control has been transferred to
the customers. The Company has objective evidence that all criterion for acceptance has been satisfied.

(a) Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
goods and there are no unfulfilled obligations.

The Company considers, whether there are other promises in the contract in which their are separate performance obligations, to which a portion of the
transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company allocates a portion of the transaction
price to goods bases on its relative prices and also considers the following:-

(i) Variable consideration

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of goods measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subseguently resolved.

(ii) Sales Return

The Company accounts for sales returns accrual by recording an allowance for sales returns concurrent with the recognition of
revenue at the time of a product sale. This allowance is based on the Company's estimate of expected sales returns. With respect
to established products, the Company considers its historical experience of sales returns, levels of inventory in the distribution
channel, estimated shelf life, product discontinuances, price changes of competitive products, and the introduction of competitive
new products, to the extent each of these factors impact the Company’s business and markets. With respect to new products
introduced by the Company, such products have historically been either extensions of an existing line of product where the
Company has historical experience or in therapeutic categories where established products exist and are sold either by the
Company or the Company’'s competitors.

(b) Sale of service
Income from sales of service is recognized over the period of contract as per the terms agreed with the customers.

(c) Other Income

(a) Rental Income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight - line basis over the lease terms and is included in
other income in the statement of profit or loss due to its non-operating nature.
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2.11
(i)

(ii)

(b} Interest Income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability.
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included
in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Short-term cbligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non monetary benefits that are expected to be settled whaolly within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employee service upto the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled, The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the
balance sheet.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

a) Gratuity
The Company has a defined benefit plan (the "Gratuity Plan"). The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to employees who
have completed four years and two forty days or more of service at retirement, disability or termination of employment, being an
amount based on the respective employee’s |ast drawn salary and the number of years of employment with the Company.

The Gratuity Plan, which is defined benefit plan, is managed by Trust with its investments maintained with Life insurance
Corporation of India, The liabilities with respect to Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on projected unit credit
method on the balance sheet date, based upon which the Company contributes to the Gratuity Scheme. The difference, if any,
between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of employees at the year end and the balance of funds is provided for as assets/
(liability) in the books. Net interest s calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under Employee benefit expense in statement af
profit or loss:

a) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements

b) Met interest expense or income

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings
through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods,

b) Provident fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. the Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable through provident fund scheme as an
expense, when an employee renders the related services. If the contribution payable to scheme for service received before the
balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as liability after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before
the balance sheet date, then excesses recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a
reduction in future payment or a cash refund,

c) Other employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee
renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance
sheet date on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recagnised in the
perfod in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to statement of profit and loss.
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss as past service cost.

2.12 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee
The Company's lease asset classes primarily comprise of lease for land and building. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement

approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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i} Right-of-use assets

{iii)

2.13

2.14

2.15

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use), Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and the estimated useful lives of the building (i.e. 30 and 60 years)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase optian,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset, The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting
policies in section 'Impairment of non-financial assets',

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase optien reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recagnised as
expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have & lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain & purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assats recognition exemption to leases that

are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Government Grants

wovernment Grants are recognized at their fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all the attached conditions
will be complied with,

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. Government grant related to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non current liability
as deferred income and are credited to the statement of profit or loss on straight line basis over the expected lives of related assets,

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and grant are recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over
the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consalidation of shares) that have changed the number
of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. :

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all potentially dilutive equity shares,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposit held at call with financial
institutions, other short - term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities in the balance sheet.
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2.16

(M

(ii)

(iii)

2.17

2.18

Foreign currency
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the
functional currency'). The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR) which is also the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transaction and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rate are generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial

transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined.

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized as income or expense in the period in which they arise with
the exception of exchange differences on gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value which is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recagnized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,
These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If the effect of the time value of money is

material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liabilily is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existance will be confirmed by the accurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases, where there is a liability that
cennot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. the Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
financial statements unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

(i) In the principal market for asset or liability, or

(i1) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non- financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate econemic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted(unadjusted) market pricas in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly cbservable

Level 3- Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurrad
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization ( based on the lowest level input that is significant to fair value measurement as a whole
) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and
risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,
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2.19 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

a)

a)

B)

c)

d)

e)

The preparation of the financial statements requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about thase
judgements, assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in future periods. .

Judgments

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements,

Leases

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if
it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is
reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there
is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to
terminate {e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset)

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income.
Given the wide range of business relationships differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such
assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on
reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations
of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority.

Gratuity benefit

The cost of defined benefit plans (i.e. Gratuity benefit) is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making varfous
assumptiens which may differ from actua! developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases,
martality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its leng-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. In determining the
appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of long term government bonds with extrapolated maturity corresponding to the
expected duration of the defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India. Future salary increases
and pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for India. Further details about the assumptions used, including a sensitivity analysis,
are given in Note 33.

Fair value measurement of financial instrument

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. the Company uses judgment in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company's past history ,existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An assets recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's CGU'S fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amaount.

In assessing value in use , the estimated future cash flows are estimated based on past rend and discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs
of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or other fair value indicators.
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f)

a)

2.20

Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by
letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance). The provision matrix is initially based on the Company's historical observed default rates. The
Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed,

The assessment of the correlation between histarical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The
amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company's historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer's actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Company’s trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in Note 10.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment represent significant portion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived
after determining an estimate of assets expected useful life and expected value at the end of its useful life. The useful life and residual value of
Company's assets are determined by Management at the time asset is acquired and reviewed periodically including at the end of each year, The useful
life is based on historical experience with similar assets, in anticipation of future events, which may have impact on their life such as change in
technology.

New and amended standards

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements )

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose
financial statements. The amendments have had an impact on the Company's disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the Company's financial statements

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning abligations, The amendments
narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to
transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The amendments had no impact , If any, in its
financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting
estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are "monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

(This page has been left blank intentionally)
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Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
4 Intangible assets

Net carrying amounts of :
Computer software 1.86 1.83

1.86 1.83

Computer software Total

Gross carrying amounts of ;
Balance as at 01 April 2022 5.98 5.98
Additions 1.60 1.60
Disposals = -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 7.58 7.58
Additions 0.60 0.60
Disposals / adjustment £ .
Balance as at 31 March 2024 B.18 8.18
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as at 01 April 2022 5.68 4.12
Amortisation expense 0.07 0.07
Disposals - %
Balance as at 31 March 2023 5.75 5.75
Amortisation expense 0.57 0.57
Disposals / adjustment 2 =
Balance as at 31 March 2024 6.32 6.32
MNet carrying amount
Balance as at 31 March 2023 1.83 1.83
Balance as at 31 March 2024 1.86 1.86

(This page has been left biank intentionally)




Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes formina part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
5 Right-of-use assets

Net carrying amounts of :
Land 113.54 114.19

113.54 114.19

Land Total

Gross carrying amounts of :
Balance as at 01 April 2022 120.47 120.47
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 120.47 120.47
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 120.47 120.47
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as at 01 April 2022 4.65 4.65
Depreciation expense 1.63 1.63
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 6.28 6.28
Depreciation expense 0.66 0.66
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 6.93 6.94
Net carrying amount
Balance as at 31 March 2023 114.19 114.19

Balance as at 31 March 2024 113.54 113.53

Note:

a) The Company undisputedly possesses the lease deeds for leasehold land held by the Company, presented in the
above schedule.
b) Right-of-use assets includes Leasehcld land obtained on long term lease of 90 to 99 years.




Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forminag part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

n INR lacs un stated
6 Investments As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Esmce Value Units/ shlares Amount Units/ shares Amount
per share n
Non- Current
6 (a) Investment in partnership firm - at cost, fully paid up
Subsidiaries
Partnership Firm
Vethesta Labs - = 918.93 = 948.68
918.93 045.68
(b) Investment in unquoted equity instruments measured at
fair value throuah orofit or loss. fullv paid uo
Other entities
Shivalik Solid Waste Management Limited 10.00 2,500.00 0.25 2,500.00 0.25
Sirmour Greens Environment Ltd., - = - ] =
Total g;s 0.25
Agareaate book value of unauoted investments 919.18 948.93
Aggregate market value of unguoted investments 919.18 948.93

(This page has been left blank intentionally)




Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise s'.ated

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
7 Other financial assets

Non-Current
(Unsecured and considered good)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Security deposits and earnest money deposits 50.73 55.51
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months (refer note (a) below) 2.05 4,685.65

52.78 4,741.16
Current
(Unsecured and considered good)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Security deposits and earnest money deposits 2.80 7.16

2.80 7.16

Notes:
(a) Bank deposits include deposits of INR 2.05 lacs as at 31 March 2024 and INR 2.16 lacs as at 31 March 2023 are lien marked with banks
against which bank guarantees have been issued to government authorities.

8 Income tax assets and liabilities i As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income tax assets - -
Income tax receivable (net of provisions} 31.39 23.29
31.39 23.29
Income tax liabilities
Income tax pavable (net of advance tax) 74.45 63.26
74.45 63.26

(This page has been left blank intentionally)




Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

MNotes forming part of the financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

10

Other assets

Non-Current

(unsecured and considered good)
Capital advances

Prepaid Expenses

Current

{unsecured and considered good)
Prepaid expenses

Advances to vendors

Balances with Government authorities
Government grant receivable

Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value

unless otherwise stated)
(refer accounting policy 2.08)
Raw materiais

In hand

In transit

Work-in-progress

Finished goods

Stores and spares

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

16.03 571

5.28 5.46

21.31 11.17
21,33 20.14

6.51 20.37
741.63 536.84
- 85.09
769.47 662.44
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

4,866.83 3,999.80

121.45 265.52

946.84 1,120.40

86.28 69.16

12.43 18.78

6,033.83 5,473.66

During the period ended, INR 28.41 lacs [March 31, 2023 : (56.69) lacs] was recognized as expense / (income) in respect of inventory
provision on account of slow moving of inventories. These adjustments were included in cost of material consumed and change in

inventories.

(This page has been left blank intentionally)




Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
MNotes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 21 March 2024
All amounts are In INR lacs unless otherwise stated

11

(i)

13

T s

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Contract balances
Contract balances includes following:
Trade receivables
(valued at amortised cost)
Unsecured, considered good 1,723.49 556.90
Considered good - Related Partles (refer note 35C) 321,51 4,840.03
Credit impaired 190,72 190,79
5,335.74 5,587.72
Less: Allowance against expected credit loss (190.79) (190,79}
514395 596,93
Trade Recelvables aglng schedule
As at 32 March 2024
) Giireat But ot o for ing periods from due date of
Particulars Lessthan 6 & months -1 Total
due 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Months year
isp Trade i les ~ wd good 4,287.54 827,43 29.88 5,144.95
isp d Trade = cradit imp 150.79 190.79
4,287.54 B27.43 29.98 - = 190,79 5,335.74
As at 31 March 2023
Dutstanding for following pariods from due date of payment
Curent but not
Particulars Lessthan & 6 months -1 Total
due 1-2years  2-3years More than 3 years
Maonths year
P Trade i - i good 5192.79 194,12 B8.34 368 = - 5,396.93
I d Trade r = credit imp * - - = 187.70 3.09 190.79
5,192.79 194.12 6.34 3.68 187.70 3.09 5,587.72

Trade Recelvable represents the amount of consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the custorners that i unconditonal. Trade recelvable are usualy non interest bearing and the average credit
penod to customers ranges wpbo 50 days,

Ne trade receivables or other receivables are due from directors or cther officers of the Company either severally er jointly with any other person. Furthar, there are no trade or other receivable due from Firms ar Private
Companies raspactively in which any director is diractor or a member, refer note below:

Pharma Force Exclpients Pyt Ltd

0.16 -

Mankind Prime Labs Pyt Ltd 103,29 -
Relax Pharma Ceuticals Put.Ltd 93.32 75.15

Pharma Force Lab 48.95 -
J.K.Print Packs 31.84 31.92
277.55 107.07

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade recesvables based on historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward loeking information.

Recejvables are deemed to be past due or impaired with reference te the Company's normal terms and conditions of business. Thase terms and conditions are determined on a case to caes basis with reference to the

customer's credic guality and prevailing market conditions, Receivebles thet are dassified as 'past due’ in the below table are those that have not been settied within the terms and conditions that have bean agreed with
that customer.

M in for d cradit loss:
Balance at the beginning of the year 190.79 190,79
Movemaent for the year - 7
Balance at the end of the year 190.79 190.79
Trade receivables include balance of related parties INR 2,421.51 lacs {March 31, 2023: INR 4,838.57 lacs) {refer note 35C).
Trade receivabies represent the amount of consideration for transfer of goods or services to the customers that is unconditional
The company's exposure ko credit and currency risk, and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in Note 35E
Thers are no unbilied receivabla.
Cash and eash aquivalents As at Az at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Balances with banks
- In current account 723.08 701.12
Cash in hand 1,66 2.04

724,71 703.16
Notes:

a) The Company has awaileble overdraft limits of INR 5 lacs  March 31, 2023 1 INR 5.00 |acs) respectively from State Bank of India Out of which, the Company has availed overdraft facillty amount to Nil {31 March 2023
+ INR Nil lacs) as at 21 March 2024,

b) The above balances are used for the purpose of statemant of cash flows.
) There are no restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior period.
d) Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost;

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Trade recenabis (Note 11) 5,144.95 5,356.53
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 12} 747 70316
Other financal assets (Note 7) 55.58 4,748.32
Other bank bslances [Note 13) 11,633.76 4,925.26

17,558.00 15;773,57
Other bank balances (at amortised cost)
Bank deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months (refer note b Delow) 10,147.50 4,324 .67
Bank deposits under lien (refer note c below) 1,485.86 500,59

1l.633_-7_§=‘ 4,925.26
Note:

&) The deposit maintained by the company with the banks earn interest at the respective short term deposit rates,
I} Fixed deposit with original maturity of mere than twelve months but remaining maturity of l2ss than bwelve menths have been disclesed under other Non-Current financial assets.

c} Bank deposits of INR 1485.56 lacs &% at 31 Merch 2024 and INR 600.52 lacs b5 at 31 March 2023 are lien marked with banks against which bank guarantees have been issued to government authonties.
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d Phar icals Private Limited

Notes formina part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

All am

14

ise stated

Share capital

Authorised
200,000 equity shares of INR 100 each

{Previous year 200,000 equity shares of INR 100 each)

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
95,000 equity shares of INR 100 each fully paid up
(Pravious year 96,000 equity shares of INR 100 each)

Notes:

(i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares

Equ I;! Eha res

As at

As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

200.00 200.00
96.00 96.00
96.00 96.00

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 100 per share. Each holder of equity shares |s entitled to one vote per share. In the svenl of
liguidation of the Company, holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amount. The distribution
will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

a) Issued eguity capital

(ii) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amou it outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

(v) Details of shares held bv promoters:

As at 31 March 2024

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Particulars Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares outslanding at the beaginning of the year 96,000 96.00 96,000 96.00
Add : Issued during the vear = = - =
Equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 96,000 96.00 96.000 96.00
(iii) Details of shares held by the holding company
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Particulars Number Amount Number Amount
Mankind Pharma Limited
- Equitv shares 60,480 50.48 60,480 60.48
(iv) Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares:
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Numbers % holding Numbers % holding
Equity shares
B.D. Tyagi 17,760 18.50% 17,760 18.50%
Mankind Pharma Limitad 60,480 63.00% 60,480 63.00%
‘eer Pal Sinah 8,000 8.33% 8,000 8.33%
Saroi Singh 7,500 7.81% 7,500 7.81%
93.740 97.64% 93,740 97.64%

S.No Promoter Name Number of shares | % of total shares %o change during the year
held
1| Mankind Pharma Limited 50,480 63.00% =
2| Mr, B.D. Tvaai 17,760 18.50% =
3] Mr. Veer Pal Singh 8.000 8.33% =
4| Ms. Sarof Singh 7.500 7.81% =
5| Ms. Seema Singh 1,741 1.81% =
4| Ms, Sonla Pundir 519 0.54% -

As at 31 March 2023

S.No Promoter Name Number of shares | % of total shares % change during the year
1| Mankind Pharma Limited 50,480 63.00% -
2] Mr. B.D, Tyaqi 17,760 18,50% =
3| Mr. Veer Pal Singh 8.000 8.33% L.
4| Ms. Sarof Singh 7.500 7.81% -
5| Ms. Seema Singh 1.741 1.81% =
4| Ms. Sonia Pundir 519 0.54% -




Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

15

15.1

15.2

Other equity

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

General reserve 681.48 681.48
Retained earnings 21,708.06 17,458.54

22,389.54 18,140.02

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

General reserve
Balance at the beginning of the vear 681.48 681.48
Transferred from retained earninas = =
Balance at the end of the year 681.48 681.48

MNature and purpose of reserves

The General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general
reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items
included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a specified percentage
in accordance with applicable regulations. The purpose of these transfers was to ensure that if a dividend distribution in a given year is
more than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company for that year, then the total dividend distribution is less than the total distributable
results for that year. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage
of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn.

Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 17,458.54 14,818.80
Profit for the year 4,222.84 2,638.75
Other comprehensive income 26.68 0.99

Balance at the end of the year 21,708.06 17,458.54

MNature and purpose of reserves

, The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders, is determined based on the requirements of

Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the amounts reported above are not distributable in entirety.

. Retained Earnings are profits that the Company has earned till date less transfer to dividend or other distribution or transaction with

shareholders.

{This page has been left blank intentionally)




Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Notes formina part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

16 Borrowinas

Current
(Secured, at amortised cost)
Bank overdraft (refer note below)

Note:

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

The overdraft facilities from bank is secured against the pledge of fixed deposit and carrles interest of 6 % p.a. The tenure of the facility is equal to the remaining

maturity of the afresaid fixed deposits.

Chanages in liability arisina from financinag activities:

Particulars

Current borrowings

Current Lease liability

MNon-Current Lease liability

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balances 51.35 0.90 0.90 15.52 15.67
Cash inflow % = " - =
Cash outflow (51.35) - - - -
Interest expenses 16.63 1.32 1.31 = =
Interest paid (16.63) (1.44) (1.31) (0.01) {0.15}
Closing balances - 0.78 0.90 15.51 15.52
17 Lease liability As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Non-current
Lease liability (refer note 36) 15.51 15.52
15.51 15.52
Current
Lease liability 0.78 0.90
0.78 0.90
18 Provisions
Mon-current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for aratuity (net) (refer note 35A) 122.07 112.88
122.07 112.88
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences 108.19 105.51
Provision for gratuity {net} (refer note 354) .14 6.72
116,33 112.23

(This page have been left blank intentionally)




Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
All amou in INR wise stated

19 Deferred tax balances

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets (including MAT credit)

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

(196.85) (186.34)
156.20 134.44
(40.65) (51.90)

Year ended 31 March 2024 Opening Recognised in Recognised in other Closing balance

Balance Profit or loss comprehensive

Tnrnme

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (186.34) (10.51}) : (196.85)
(A) (186.34) (10.51) - {196.85)
Deferred tax assets in relation to
Pravision for employee benefits 56.65 12.31 (8.97) 59.99
Property, plant and equipment - -
Allowance for expected credit loss = :
Provision for inventory 8.13 (0.98) - 7.15
Commission payable - = .
Provision for doubtful loans and advances 48.02 - - 48.02
Bonus payable 16.05 0.28 - 16.33
Provision for disallowance under section 438 of - 0.16 - 0.16
Income Tax Act
Deferred Government Grant 1.42 18.98 - 20.40
Others 4.17 (0.03) g 4.14
(B) 134.44 30.72 (8.97) 156.20
(A+B) (51.90) 20.21 (8.97) (40.65)
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (51.90) 20.21 (8.97) (40.65)
Year ended 31 March 2023 Opening Recognised in Recognised in other Closing balance

Balance Profit or loss comprehensive

Income

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (161.65) (24.69) - (186.34)
(A) (161.65) (24.69) = (186.34)
Deferred tax assets in relation to
Provision for emplovee benefits 41.80 15.18 {0.33) 56.65
Provision for inventory 23.15 (15.02) = 8.13
Pravision for doubtful loans and advances 48.02 - - 48.02
Bonus payable 13.60 2.45 - 16.05
Deferred Government Grant 4,71 (3.29) - 1.42
Others 4.40 (0.23) = 4,17
(B) 135.68 (0.91) {0.33) 134.44
(A+B) (25.97) (25.60) (0.33) (51.90)
MAT Credit Entitlerment 2 =
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (25.97) (51.90)

Notes:
a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are being offset as they relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.




Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

&l amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated
20 Other liabilities

MNote:

21

211

22

MNon-current
Deferred Government grant (refer note below)

Current
Statutcry liabilities
Deferred Government grant (refer note below)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

71.37 B1.06
71.37 £1.06
34,22 45,16

9.67 9.67
43.89 54.83

The Company has received approval for capital subsidy amounting to INR 85.09 lacs - March 2023 for thelr manufatcuring units under the Central Investment Subsidy scheme based on the investment in

plant and machinery. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these grants. Such government grant is being amortised over the useful life of such assets.

Movement of government grant:

Qpening balance

[ = S S B =

90.73 18.73
Add: grant receivable during the year - 85.09
Less: government grant income (refer note 24) {9.69) {13.09)
Closing balance £1.04 90.73
Trade pavables
Current
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (see note 33) 213.54 451,60
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 6,740.34 8,137.18
5,953.88 8,588.78
Trade Payable aging schedule
As at 31 March 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled Not due feas i Total
s than:d 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
year
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises = 212.90 0.64 - - = 213.54
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 78.37 5,812.02 766,38 83.58 - = 6,740.34
and small enterprises
Total 78.37 6,024.92 767.02 8358 - & 6,953.88
As at 31 March 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled Not due FrCE— Total
ess than
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 352.22 92.97 641 £ - 451,60
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 59.22 6,892.50 1162.25 6.49 % 16.72 B,137.18
and small enterprises
Total 59.22 7,244.72 1,255.22 12.90 - 16.72 8,588.78
—
Note:
The average credit period on purchases |s upto 60 days to 90 days for the Company. The Company h that all payables are paid within the pre agreed credit limits.
. Trade Payables include due to related parties INR 1,269.36 lacs (31 March 2023: INR 821.01 lacs).
., The amounts are unsecured and non-interest bearing.
For terms and conditions with related parties, refer to Note 35C,
. There are no disputed trade payables,
Other financial liabilities
(valued at amortised cost)
Current
Payable for purchase of property, plant and equipment 50046 68,09
Gﬂﬂ.g‘ 68,09

—

T,
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23

23.1

24

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Revenue from operations
Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of products 43,696.84 33,984.76
Sale of services 1,245.00 836.17

44,941.84 34,820.93

e
Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaoareaation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:
Type of goods/sarvices Year ended Year ended
Ype of goods/| 31 March 2024 31
Sale of Pharmaceuticals Products 43,696.84 33,984.76
Sale of Services 1,245.00 836.17
Total revenue from contracts with customers 44,941.84 34,820.93
Revenue by location of customers
India 44,541.84 34,820.93
Outside India = >
Total revenue from contracts with customers 44,941.84 34,820.93
Timina of revenue recoanition
Goods transferred at a point in time 43,696.84 33,084.76
Services transferred aver the time 1.,245.00 836.17
Total revenue from contracts with customers 44,941.84 34,820.93
Contract balances As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Trade receivables 5.144.95 5,386.93

Contract liabilities - %

Trade receivables are non interest bearing. Credit period asnerallv falls in the ranoe of upto 90 davs.
Contract liabilities consist of short-term advances received to supply goods from customer.

Reconciling the tofr rec ised in the of profit and loss with the contracted price
Year ended ! Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Revenue as per contracted price 44,962.44 35,018.11
Adiustments:

Sales return (20.60) (198.18)
Revenue from contracts with customers 44,941.84 34,820.93
Performance obligations

Sale of Products: Performance obligation in respect of sale of goods is satisfied when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the goods and payment is generally dues within 30 days from delivery of goods (refer accounting policy 2.12).

Sales of services: The performance ohligation in respect of services is satisfled over a perlod of time and acceptance of the customer, In respect of
these services, payment is generally due upon completion of services and providing certificate to the customer (refer accounting policy 2.12).

Year ended Year ended
Other income 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest income
Interest income eamed on:
- bank deposits {at amortised cost) 734,97 423.27
- financial assets {at amaortised cost) 3.40 1.88
738.37 425.15
Other gains and losses
Dividend income from financial assets measured at FVTPL 0.09 0.09
Scrap sales 7.55 6.16
Government arant income (refer note 20) 9.69 13.09
Gain on szle of property, plant and eauipment (net) 0.91 2,82
Share in profit/ loss of partnership firms (net) 495.26 261.52
Gain on foreign currency transactions and translation (net} 71.78 -
Miscellansous income 17.33 9.78
602.61 283.46
1,340.98 718.61

(This page have been left blank intentionally)
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25

26

27

28

29

Cost of raw material and components consumed
Raw material and components consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the vear (refer note 10)
Add: Purchases

Less: inventary at the end of the year (refer note 10)

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress

Opening Stock:
Finished goods
Work in progress

Closing Stock:
Finished goods
Work in progress

Net decrease/(increase)
Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages, bonus and other benefits
Contribution to provident and other fund

Gratuity expense (refer note 35A)
Staff welfare expenses

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

4,265.32 5,266.73

36,618.04 26,883.59

40,883.36 32,150.32
(4,988.28) (4,265.32)
35,895.08 27,885.00

69.16 223.78

1,120.40 1,077.90

1,189.56 1,301.68

86.28 69.16

946.84 1,120.40

1,033.12 1,189.56

156.44 112.12

2,022.19 1,762.96

143.01 118.07

47.60 45.62

52.97 43.53

2,265.77 1,970.18

Note: The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits recelved
Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into
affact has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it
comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

Based on a preliminary assessment, the Company believes the impact of the change will not be significant.”

Finance Costs

Interest expense on borrowinas
Interest on delay deposit of income tax
Interest on lease liabilities

Other finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3}
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4)
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (refer note 5)

- 16.63
0.76 6.76
1.32 1.31

48.67 44.44
50.75 69.14
387.04 349.22

0.57 0.07

0.66 1.63
388.27 350.92
=88 =7
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30 Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spares
Power and fuel
Rent
Repair and maintenance

- Machinery

- Building

- others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Communication expenses
Postage and courier
Travelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery
Freight cartage and other distribution cost
Director sitting fees
CSR. expenditure (refer note 37)
Donation and contributions
Legal and professional charges
Payments to auditors (refer note below)
Advertising and sales promotion expenses
Security expenses
Testing and inspection charges
Bank charges
Other receivables written off
Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Note:
Payments to the auditors (excluding input tax)
1 To statutory auditors
a) Audit fees
b) Reimbursement of expenses

Year ended

31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

95.60 94,15
707.37 545.73
3.51 0.90
100.36 90.04
52.29 72.78
41.04 25.33
32.30 15.54
50.55 47.14
T2 4.81
1.66 1.24
209.69 174.74
26.59 23.99
7.11 5.39
4,80 .00
66.49 61.53
6.05 4.64
28.69 27.34
9.75 9.78
0.05 0.66
5.51 2.31
478.51 318.64
9.71 15.05
12.47 £
- 60.70
48.65 54.48
2,006.52 1,662.91
9.75 9,20
- 0.58
9.75 9.78

(This place has been left blank intentionally)
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Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

31 Income taxes
31.1 Income tax recognised in the Statement of profit and loss
Current tax
in respect of the current year 1,315.82 §25.18
In respect of the previous year 1.54 (0.26)
1,317.36 824.92
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year (20.21) 25.60
(20.21) 25.60
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year 1,297.15 850.52
The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit before tax 5,519.99 3,489.27
Statutory income tax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Income tax expense at statutory income tax rate 1,389.27 B878.18
Effect of Income that is exempt from taxation (124.85) (65.82)
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 30.88 31.96
Deferred tax credit in respect of the prior years (0.96) 6.46
Tax related to earlier year 1.54 (0.26)
At the effective income tax rate of 23.48% (March 31, 2023: 24.37%) 1,296.08 850.52
31.2 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of the defined benefit plan (8.97) (0.33)
Total income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income (8.97) (0.23)

(This place has been left blank intentionally)
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32

33

Earninas per eauitv share

Basic earnings per equity share has been computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding for the year. Diluted earnings per equity share has been computed using the weighted average number of eguity shares and
dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Profit far the vear attributable to equity holders INR lacs 4,222.84 2,638.75
Weighted average number of equity shares used for Number 96,000 96,000
computing basic and diluted earning per share

Mominal Value of Equity Shares INR 100.00 100.00
Basic earninas per share INR 4.398.79 2.748.70
Diluted earninas per share INR 4,398.79 2,748.70

MSMED disclosure

Information as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)
for the year ended 31 March 2024 is given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on
the basis of information available with the Company:

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2022

(i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid
to any supplier covered under MSMED Act:
- Principal amount 140.33 427.06
- Interest thereon 73.21 24.54
(ii) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of -
the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting
year
(i} the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in E E
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
this Act

(iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 73.21 24.54
each accounting year

{v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in = =
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above
are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose af
disaliowance as a deductible expenditure uder section 23 of the
MSMED Act, 2006

(This place has been left blank intentionally)
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34 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
A. Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Disputed tax liabilities

Demand raised by department u/s 143(1) and 143(3) of Income Tax Act, 1961 for AY 17-18, AY 19-20 and 166.69 310.10
AY 22-23

166.69 310.10

Mote: The Company is contesting the demands and the management, including its tax advisors, believe that its position s likely to be upheld in the appellate process and
accordingly no provision has been considered in these financial statements for the tax demand raised. The management believes that the ultimate outcome of this
proceeding will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations.

During the year, the Income Tax Department {'the department’) had conducted a search under section 132 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 at Company's premises. Duning
the search proceedings, the Company has provided necessary Information and responses to the department. Also, the department has taken certain documents, data
backups and other information for further investigation.

Subsequently, the Incame Tax Department has issued notices under Section 148 of the Income Tax Act 1961 In October 2023 which requires the Company to furnish
income tax returns in response to notice under Saction 148 of the Act for the assessment years 2020-21, 2021-22 and 2022-23. The Company has filed income tax retuins
In response to such notices under section 148 of the Act. Based on the returns filed In respanse to section 148 and the assessmant made by the management and its tax
advisor, the Company is of the view that no material adjustments are required to be made in thesa financlal statements,

Commitments

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Estimated amount of capital contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for (net of advances) 643.03 BB.53
643.03 BB.53

Long term contracts

The Company did not have any leng term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(This place has been left blank intantionally)
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35
A

it

(i)

iy

OTHER MOTES ON ACCOUNTS

Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS - 19 "Employee Benefits™ (specified under the section 133 of the Companias Act 2013 [the Act) read with Companies [Indian Accounting Standards) Rufe 2015 (as
amended from time to time) and other relevant provision of the Act) are given below |

Employes Benefits:
Defined contribution plan

Under the scheme, the Company Is required to

The Company's c to the Employ Provident Fund is wizh the Regienal Provident Furd Co For qualifying ¥

cantribute & specified percentage of payroll cost ko the retirement benefit plan to fund the benefits.

Contribution to Defined © fon Plan. a5 for the vear is as under: i
Yoar ended Year Ended
31 March2023
Employer's Cantribution towards Provident Fund (PF) 113.06 93.12
113.06 82.12

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity plan

The employees' Gratulty Fund Schema, which 15 a defined benefit plan, is managed by the trust which maintains its investments with Life Insurance Corporation of india (LIC). The gratuity plan Is governed by the Payment of
Gratuity Ack, 1972, Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed at feast five years of service usually gets a gratuity on depariure @ 15 days of last drawn salary for each complebed year of service. The pres=nt

benefit

and measures each

unit of employ

valuz of obligation is determined based on actuanal valuation using the Projacted Unit Credit Method, which recognises sach pariod of service as giving rise to
unit separately to build up the final obligation,

liability s

The gratukty lizbilicy arises on retiremeant, withdrawal, resignation and death af an ployan, The
subject ko completion of five years service,

Risks i. with Plan Pr

Rizks asseciated with the plan provisions are actuarsial risks. These risks are:- (1) Interest rate risk (discount rate risk), (i) mortality risk and (i) salary growth risk.

Interest rate risk (discount rate risk) A decreass in the bond Interest rate [discount rate) will morease the plan babilicy

The present value of the defined benefit plan lability |5 calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants. For this

Mortality risk
report we have usad Indian Assured Lives Mortality {2012-14) ultimate table,

A change in mortality rate will have 2 bearing on the plan's lishility.

The present value of the defined banefit plan liability is calculated with the assumption of salery increase rate of plan participants in future,
Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of
abligation will have a bearing on the plan's liabilicy.

Salary growth risk

Principal actuarial assumptions:
Principle actuarial assumption used to determine tha presant value of the ben «fic obligation are as faflows:

on the basis of fiftean days salary {Le. last drawn basic salary) for each completed year of service

5. Particulars Refer note As at As at
Mo. below 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

. Discount rate {p.a,) 1 7.22% 7.36%

. Salary escalation rate {p.a.} 2 10.00% 10.00%

i, Mumber of employees 389 182

. Awerage remaining working life [years) 23.16 23.86

v.  Investment in LIC 100.00% 100.00%:
Notes

1 The discount rate is based on the prevalling market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of obligations.

2 The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promaotion and other relevant Factors.

As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Demographic assumptions:
Retirement age

58
Mortality rate 100% of TALM (2012 -

100% of [ALM {2012 - 14)

Attrition rate
Upte 30 vears 15.53% 14.67%
From 31 to 44 vears 6.27% 6, 78%:
Above 44 vears 1.50% 1,80%
The following tables set out the funded states of the gratuity plan and amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements:
a. MNet defined benafit ir in the of profit and loss for the year )
Particulars Year ended Year ended
— 31
Current service cost 38.80 35,85
Mot interest axpensas £.80 573
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in statement of profit and loss 47,60 45.62
b, {gain}/ loss r d in other compret income
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2033
Actuarial {nainsVlosses due to chanae in demearachic assumetions 2.3% 11.58%
Actuarial (oairs Vlosses due to chanae in financial assumotions 33,35 [4.44)
Actuarial {nains Wiesses dui to chande in experience varance [5.500 4.30
Retumn on Plan assets axcluding interest income 0.91 0.70
Component of defined benefit costs in athar compr income (35.64) (1.32)

The current sarvice cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expenss ' in the statement of profit and loss. The remeasurement of the net defined
benafit liability is incleded in the other comprehensive income.

€. The amount included in the Balance sheet arising from the entity” s obligation in respect of its definad benefit plans are as follows:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of Defined Benefit obliaation 211.01 3.75
Less: Fair value of plan assets 180.83) 184,151
Unfunded status - deficit 130.18 119.60
Current {Refer note 18] 8,14 112.88
122.07 6.72

MNon Current (Refer note 18)
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d. 1 of ing and closing bal of Definad Benefit obligation
Particulars Year endad Yaar andad
Dpening defined benefit obligation 203.75 157.12
Current service cost 38.80 39.89
Interest cost 14.99 1200
Benefits naid 19.95) (13.24)
Actuarial (gaim)/less on cbligation 136.561 12,031
Closing defined beneafit obligations 211,01 203.75
e. Reconciliation of opaning and closing balances of Plan assets |
Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year B4.15 87.35
Actual Income on Plan Assat 2 5.76 6.27
Fund Management Charges 0,48% 10.68)
Employer contribution < 4.45
Benefits paid (8.61) 1324}
Recelved from LIC against payment made by provision = =
Fair value of plan assats at tha end of tha vear 80,83 B4,15
f. Sensitivity analvsis
ignificant actuarial for the i of the defined banefit ohligation are diseount rate and expected salary Increase. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptiens occurring 2t the end of the reperting periad, while helding all other assumptions constant,
Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Decrease Dacraass Incraase
Discount Rate [+ +0.5%) 12.44 (11.43) 12.53 {1128}
Salary Growth Rata {-/+0.5%) (11,35} 13.23 {L11.26) 1216
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actuzl change in the defined benefit ahligation as It is unlikely that the change in assumpbions would oceur in iselation
of one anather as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
Furthermaore, |n presenting the above sensitiaty analysis, the present value of the defined benefit a has been calculated using the praj d unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined banafit liability recognised in the Balance sheet.
There was ne changs in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior penod / year.
g, The '] il lysis of dafined benefit obligation is as follows:
As at As at
Expected cash flows over the next 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Within the next 12 months {next annual reporting period) 814 a4
Between 2 and 5 years 51.2% 39.04
Mare than 5 years 151.59 157.97
211.01 203.75
h, Expected contribution for the next Annual reporting period is INR 55,42 |acs (March 31, 2023; 57.71 lacs),
B Seament Infarmation
A, Basis for segmentation
The aperations of the Company are limited to one segment viz, Pharmazsutical praducts, which as per Ind AS - 108 "Operating Segments” s considered the anly reportable segmant.
B. Geographic Segment
The Company operates only in one Country and dees nat have any separate identifizble geographic segment.
c Major Customer

Thera is ena customer which accounted for 10% or more of the company's revenus for the period ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 respectively. The total amount of revenue from the customer of the Company =
manufacturing business is INR 75,5%0.78 lacs (March 31, 2023: TNR 31,429.39 lacs). No other single customer contributes 10% or more to the Company 5 revenue for the yesr ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,




F uopepunod efaung pueyd ysipber
et sBUISNpU] "S'N
S2|35npU] 124 Jnowns

SBISNPUT 104 BWIBYL

s|eqiaH |yqns

sianded "5y

SIoEd Z 1 Y

siojeauged ilejeg saiys

aJely)jesH B9g wWg

1581 Ajod eyd|y

siaLA|od BjEqQUY

Ansnpur BuiBexoed ejequy

syaop Bupsaubul spuauy

uonelodion Buunioenue pIEPURIS

SH2ed Julid AT

syuawdinby ssacosd euoey

PaYILLI B1BAl SB|PSWSY JNowns

palLLI 3eAld UoalLby puiuel

P Jag JuBIdIDXg 92404 BULIBYY
PEIILUM 218ALd SUDIIBAOULT BWEd
PEILUN Sj2ald Youeasay 3240)pakn
PN BIBAKG SHET UMY puuel
sanIepads puiyuelR

qe7 22404 BULEYd

paiiw| 2yeaud sqe ddl

SOE7 BISqIRA

I 33BALId S|EJINSIRWIELL XB|ZY
pajiwr ajealid sqe Jzubep
PRI 318Ad BLIIBYY J2152)
PRI BIBALL SUORBADUUT HIBd|paly
PaYILUIT 31BAd SUEIYYESH B3J0)Ipal)

pan

JIPUNY BUDS ‘Sl
YyBuls Pwsas 'Sl
yBus [oaes “sip
ybuis unliy “Jp

1B L [um|iN i
YBU|S JUBLIIH Sk
1B6eAL B|Eg IYSEYS S

pawWyY SeUMY "
BARISBALIS JEWNy ARYGY "W
yysney edpuadnuyg iy

eyr nfuy ‘s

ybuis jeg J=an AW

Auedwod BUIPIOH JO diWil /diad 10
saAER) fdiy J0 2ousnjul Juedyubls Japun seiug (M)

SBUBIPISqNS Mojad (

di Jo saaneEy (1))

(dwn) 1Buuosiad Juswabeuel Aax (1)

sdead ay3 Bulnp ase|d uaye] ABY SuoDHIESURL) WoyMm Yim diysuopie|as Apled pajejad jo sdnjeu pue saijed pajejas a0 (q)

P BULIBYY PUiHUER

Auedwod Buiploy

: 535|¥8 [0s3u03 Biaym sdiysuoie|ad Aled payeas jo sunjeu pue saied paje|ad jo sawen ()

-:MOjB0 PEse|IsIp 318 (1Y

ny (spaepueys Gununo ueipur) SEuedu i pESd (197 B3} £T0Z 197 sewedwoD By Jo EET u0i0as Ayl Japun | ‘ saunsopsig Aled pajeiy, ‘pZ-5Y PUl 40 SwE Byl ad se ssiped paiead ayl
By Jo uoISIADI JUBABIEI JBUI0 PUE (SW 0 SN Wouy pEpuswe se) §TOZ 3Ny (Spsepuels Bununodoy ueipur) S8 0D f3im p y

saunsojasiq AMed p;e@y 23

33635 95]MIaLJ0 558]UN SJ8] YNI U] 948 SJUNOIE [|¥

$TOZ Ya4eld TE papus teak ayj 40} sjuawaleys |eppueul ay3 jo Jed Bujwaioy sajon

pa3iwi] ajeAlld SjERINasRwLeyd pawdod



PRI S1BAILG UDE1bY pUUB

09°T = 0s'T oF'T = = -
¥
A= Swosug [ejuay (1a)
- TE'ET * - # TEET - " - - P SIBALL 2UEDYI|ERH S2I0HPA |
= S = = = B - = = - SQET EISEGIRA
S0'LE 8601 SO'LE B86'0T - - - = 5 - S)I84 JULd “HT
86 LB'TY - - vee LETF - = - - paILM 2BAld S|EDINBIELIIRY 8|2y
spoog |exded jo ajes (A}
= STPT = = - STk < - s - PENLIT 2IEAId S|EJNIIEWLEY XY
L1798 S0°6TT'T = = - - = = LI°9E8 SOBIZ'T PRI BLIELd PUBRUE
B2jAIB5 JO 3|ES (A1)
- »T0 = & = +1°0 - - = £ PRI S1BALY STUBIGIXT S0J0JBULIRL
€00 100 - - £0'0 T0°0 - - - - PRI SYBAL] U2UESSEY BDI0JPSNW
S6'66E'T 06'CrP'T = = S6'B6ET 06" ZPP'T = = = - PSIWIT 2IEAL SOET WU PUPUBK
o0'T 95°1 oo't 95'T = = = - uoIEPUNOY Bl3UN[ PUByd YsIpoer
LZ0 L' £Z'0 vy = = = = - = PRYIWIT BIBALLY SSIPRWLSY JNowS
vT'T 68'PL - = +T°T 68°PT - * = - e l-a R LELRERY
0E'E It DE'T 'y = = = ] = = S)284 g ML
TEBT 9%'85 = = TEBT 9v°85 = - = = SOET 82404 BLUUBYY
vZ'0 65'0 - - $Z°0 650 - - - - PaIWI| S1BALY 34D YIESH B20JIpBlL
1’68 LS'¥9 - = el 3 L5909 = = i - PEYILLIN 81BALd S|EDNSDBLLUEYY %E8|3d
8T'965'0€ T6'L6LLE = = = - = - 81°965'0E I6°LBL'LE DAL BUWLEYd PUR{UE)
£ - spoog jo sajes (1!}
= BE'L L = = BEL - ] = - pPalILLIN 212A1d SIEJNBIBLLIELY XE[=3Y
- I8'6ED - 4 3 - - - - 19°6EF PEHLUM BULEY PUBIUEL
+0'ST SE'9 #0°5T SE'S e = = - = - soneauqed Ilejeg sauys
spoog |eyded jo aseyaind (11)
9290 [3:0 4 4 = = 99'0 GB'v - - = = PRI 33EAKd SUORBAOUUT BlUHIEd
TZ'0 = - & 12'0 = * = = - Jojenuged |lejeq 3auys
B¥°'68 SLES BF'68 GL'ES - - = = = - s|eqJay ygang
A I5°18 fa s g 1518 * = - - - - UO(]EI0010D BULNIIBINUER PIEPUEIS
£6°0 BO'T - s L6°0 BOT & = = - sOE BISEgIEA
¥S'0BL BO'TIS ¥508L B0°T18 * = = = - - sHeedyuLd AT
LL"BOT = LL'B0T = = = 5 - = - UBLLLL
ELGT 23008 o £L6T 1 = o = - = - SBLISNPU] 19d BulByd
0T°LS S5°TF = k& 0T'Ls 55'T = g = - sqen 82404 Buwlielyd
95°08S BSTETL %5°085 BSETL s o - . - - SISNPUT "5
TP ECE S1°ES PEET STZS . - “ 2 E - $3IO A, DULIBBUIDLT SPUBLY
oo sT0 Z0'0 820 = + he - o - PR 31BALd S2IpaLIEyY Jnouuls
9z'y vE'ZY a9ty ey - = = - - - SBISNPUT 184 JNOWS
SLE6RT 0LZ9T SLERT 0£'29T = = = - = - sialed S v
SE'E - SE'E = * - = = - - SIBWAIOY Blequy
TT'IE TT'0E [ 43 2108 # £ = = - - SIEIEd 7 UL Y
SE'LEE'T rEBOPT = b SELEE'T PREOF'T - > = = PRI B3BALY UOIBAOUUT HIRAIPS|
95'ELE 96°TZ9 = " 95°ELE 96'1Z9 # = . - PRI S1BAM SIEJINE0EWIRYL KE[@Y
51'0 s0°0 - = S0 s0'0 s = % - payiwr] S1EAUd 218aYl|EaH S20JPaK
1885 ¥IET * # = = % - 18'55 PTET paji BBl PUIUEL
jelae) Bul¥ded pue SIQEWNSUC] leiale MeY J0 aseyaind (1)
7 T 7 T e T
EZOT'TE PZOT'IE YoEn £Z0T'TE YSHEN PTOT'IE EZO0Z'IE PTOT'TE E£TOZ'TE vZTOZ'1E £20Z'TE U el PZOZT'TE UoIeW
Hektil papua Jesp PapuUS JEBA yaew yaaep Yo yaien HRaEn papua Jea) papua Jeag
papus Jeaj papua deap papua JEaj papus Jea) papus Jea) papua Jeaj

Auedwo) BuipjoH

je30L 10 dW) /diM J0 SAAREISL /AW
30 sauanpjui uedyubis sapun sappua

di 0 seanejay /(dwd)
|jauuosiad juswasbeuely Aay

sie|nanded

SBLIEPISQNS MOjjad Auedwod BuipjoH

Pa3E35 SSIAISI30 SSa[UN SOE| UNI Ul 248 SUNoWE iy
$Z0T Yodew TE papus Jeah Byj 4o} SJUBWSIEIS (BIDUBUY BL3 JO Hed bujwioy SajoN
pawy] s1EAld S|ealneeuLEyd pawdo)



YT'E = : = ¥2E ooe ¥ = HIysney 24pusdnyg dw
08t - - 08'T 0aT z - eyr nluy Sk
o = § saay bupus (w)

I8°6Z oo'og - 2 = 3 18°6% 00'0E = - ybuis |24 J38A U
£T°0T 00°ZT = - - = £2°0T o0zt = - YDUIS IUBLUIH “Sdi
S6'BI 09°81 = - = = 56’81 09°8T = - ibEAL B|Bg |YSEYS S
uopesaunway ()

60°T = - + = = - - 6#'T = paW BB puUEl
dxa asemyos(i)

or'9zT = - = - o & = o9z - PEUWIT BULEL S PUPUER
1500 asueul Ja4yio(l)

o} 89°1T¥ = - = - e = - 89 TR PRI BULEBL] PUHUER
asuadxg aajuelens ajeodiaa(l)

N 80 = = L2 80 = = L = pajilLr BEALd SUOIIEADUL] SLIP2Ed

- £0°0 - = " £0°0 E = - - e a3dog BULIBLYY

- = = = * = 5 - - - 3IEd JULd WL
vE'D - ¥E£°0 = = = = - - - UBWIIU A
6T°D 90’0 &61°0 900 = = % o = - SHEOM DNIHIINIDONT SANITHA
0E'F 9L 0E'® 9Le - = 3 2 - # SYIHIWA'S'Y
6L LY QEES BT Ll OE'ES = = s = i = SHINIVd Z 0L Y
- £0°0 = = = £0°0 N + = £ pajWIT B1EALd S|EIINE0EULIEYL XY
~dx3 ajqewnsuod (y)

16°0 # 1670 - # ] = = - s@||Ix@L 1L B|eg S2IYS
abesana] @ waoyun (b)

90°TT 98t a0'tT o8z s = - - - - Jojesgey (lejeg 2auus
sasuadxg SJUBUBIU|EW B Jeday (3)

TET TTET e TTET - - - - - siied 'SV
Adeuopels g bupuld(a)

0s'L S0°6 = - 05°L s0'6 - - - - PRI F1BAL S|EIINSIBWIEYL XE[2Y
sasuadx3 vonesqled (p)

i b1 - b1 & - - = e - yoediuid “¥T
juay (3)

- S9°LEZT - SO LET = " - = - - H2Ed I W [
a8 - = - ZrET - = = - - PRI B1BAHd S|E2ANE0EULELY XB|3Y
- LS'SE = = = L5'SE - - - - PRI BIBALG YDUED53Y 3204IPSK
ET'D ov'9 - = # E % - £T°0 o'a paULIM BLUIBYd PUIRUR
sasuadx3 sisAjeuy B bunsal (q)

T8'E o'z e = = 0¥z - = = - pa LU 31BAMd YoJeasey S2104pak
I8's 86°S - = 8’8 56'S = = ¥ - pajiLLr 31eAld S[EINSIEWUBLY XB|3Y
FAS ] = =+ = N = = = 4170 - pEjL BULEYd PUBUEL

sasuadxa Atojesoqe(e)

san3ipuadxa(iia)

Fa3835 SsIMISL30 Seo[UN SOE| NI Ul 94E SJUNDWE [Iy
$Z0Z YoIeW TE PAPUS JEBA BU3 10) SIUSIIIEIS [EDUBLY 343 JO 3ed Buiwio) 330N
PN 93EALd SjealIneleuLEyd pawdo)



[eRueLy 24y Suuiwexs yenoayy Jeed e
paalazal Jo papinosd saaquesent ou USAg SABL BBLL TYSED UL SIN330 JUBLUBIFS pue Bal 15a13U) pue

o

P ]
‘BA00E PEPNEU 0U BUE [Buuosiad juswabeuew Az 03 By m_._wn_ Junawe su) ‘ajoym B se AusdwoD Byl Joj 515eq |eLeniDe uo peplacsd aue Aumein, Bulaq s1yaUaq Juawadjal 150d Joj saii|igel Byl iy (i

..»\.o\....nwbumm UBKELBPUN SI JUBIWSSSssE S|YL° sarped pale(as AQ pamo Sjunowe o). Bunejad sajneAlaoas jo JusuLiedw) AUR PRPIoas Jou sey Auedlwiod 3 'pEOZ YMEW TE papU@ seah 3y) o4 sajgeded 40 s3|geaaDa) Aued paje|zl Aue soy
paJnJasun e ﬂcwtm.ux Byl 18 saoue|eq BUIpuUBISING ‘SUCHTEsURS] yibua| swae u jleasad 1843 3500 OO JualeAINba SWUS) UC apew aie senled pageEl yim suonpesuen syl (1

' -saessdo Ayed paje(El 3yl yIlum U) 3Sew Byl pue Aped pstead auyl o worpsed

B9'BY6 PE'LTE = = 89°8¥6 FELTE - = - = SOET 21520380
SIUSWISBAUT P
BF 09 Br'09 2 = = = L - ar'02 09 pallW] BULIEY PUB{UBY
|e3ded adeys AJinb3 "2
£T°0 5Z'0S ET0 - - 5205 - - - - ALl Lhd SNOLLYAONNI IWILHIYd
EL'T = ELT =] = - - = =2 = SBlISNpU] 184 BULEYd
EO'S I IL EQ'S 1T = = = = - - SBLISNPUL 134 JNOWaS
TT's - 1’5 = = = = e = UO[lE00I07) BULNIIBINURE PIAepUElS
BE'S T BE'S - Fat a4 - N - = PaIWT SMeALd YIIEassy SI0jipal
8T°CT 0 BI'ZT 220 = = = = - - sjequaH ygans
IT°05 & 11°05 = 3 = = - = U Julid
E6°ZBT ST 6t E6TBT SU'sF = - = = # - SaLISNPUT 5N
TLTY I0°E ZLTR T0'E o = o E = = ¥aeduLd AT
E6°'ST = £6°ST * = - = - - SHION, DU S@auIbUT SpUSLS
TE'EE BI'ET Z6EE 89°ET = - = = £ - SIBWIES'S Y
SS'BT L6'E S&ET LB'E = = < = - - SIEMIEd Z OL Y
= 100 3 T0°0 = - - = SGET 32404 BBy
o8 88'6ZT = = TO¥E 88621 - - - - pajiL 1eAld S|EINBIBULIEY XE|DY
T I8 OE"IVE - = $Z 182 O TPE = = 5 - PaWT BIEALL USIEADUU] HIBIPS
B6Z°16 £T'P99 = = = = = = 6216 £2°999 PaILIN BULIBY PUqUE)
sajgeded apey] g
- L = = = ¥rE - s = o SEE7 BIS201EN
- S6'BY - - - 565'8% . - - - Sqe| 20404 BULELY
ST'SL TE'ES = = S1°5L TE'ER 5 = = - pPRYLIN B1BALd S|EINN2IBULIEL XE|aY
T6°TE 8 1E Z6°1E PE'TE z - - = = - Haedijund Wl
- GZ'EDT = - - BZEDT . = = = pPEULLIM S18A4 SOE7 BLU|ig PUUS)
96'TEL'Y 89°0¢T'E - = o e - = SE'TEL'Y FIOPI'E PaW] BLLEU PUUE
Sa|qEAI30a] BpedL e

£C0ZTIE $TOZ'IE PAeW £Z0Z'TE WEW FZOZ 1 EZ0C TE PZOT TE ECOTTE PZOTIE £Z0Z'IE UpIBW ZOZ'LE YEW

LB papusa dea) papua Jeaj U=l S pin HLRM byetie UM papua Jeay papus Jeap
papua Jeaj papua Jeaj papus JBajA papus Jeap papua JEaj papua Jeaj,
Akadiies o dHDI JO SoARE[RY / (dWN)
[T 3O dIW /diii 30 SIARRISA /I sageipIsqns mojjad |suuosiad Juawabeuely Ao Auedwog Buip|oH sigjnaed
J0 33UaN[UL JUEILUDIS Japun saaua

LE'TE - = - = 4 ] = LETE = PEIWIT BULEYL PUIHUE]Y
pred d Jwiay (1)
BY'8 = - = = = = - a8 - PEWIT BULBYd PUHUE)
pan@aal SasUadXa Jo Juswasinguiay (b)
00°SPE o - - 0D°SPE = = e - - SOE7 B3sRgIEn
umeapyIm [eyde) (d)
0008 = - = 0005 = = = b - sSqQET E3sRgIEn
uagnegaued (e3ded (o)
£5'95 61°99 £5'95 6P°99 = = - = & = UDPEPUNOY BlaUN[ pueyd Ysipoer

aanyipuadxa ¥sD (u)

PajEls o5[MIaL10 S5a|Un s08| NI Ul B SJUNOWE ||
$TOZ Yoiel TE papua Jeak syl 40j SIUSWAIEIS [EPURUY BU3 o Med Bujwio) S330N
pajiW] 3eALd S|E3lNadeULIEYd pawdo)



Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

D

1)

2)

3)

4)

Fair value measurements
Set out below, Is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company'’s financial instruments:

Carrying Value Fair Value
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Financial instruments by category

Financial assets at amortized cost

Trade Receivables 5,144.95 5,396.93 5,144.95 5,396.93
Cash and cash equivalents 724.71 703.16 72471 703.16
Other bank balances 11,633.76 4,925.26 11,633.76 4,925.26
Other Financial assets 55.58 4,748.32 55.58 4,748.32
Investment in subsidiaries 918.93 948.68 918.93 948.68
Investments 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25
18,478.18 16,722.60 18,478.18 16,722.60

Financial Liabilities at amortized cost
Trade Payables 6,953.88 8,58B.78 6,953.88 8,588.78
Other financial liabilities 600.46 68.09 600.46 658.09
Lease liabilities 16.29 16.42 16.29 16.42
7,570.63 8,673.29 7,570.63 8,673.29

The fair value of the financlal assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of unguoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities, as well as other non-current financial liabilities is estimated by
discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. In addition to being
sensitive to a reasonably possible change in the forecast cash flows or the discount rate, the fair value of the equity instruments is also sensitive to a
reasonably possible change in the growth rates. The valuation requires management to use unobservable inputs in the model, of which the significant
unobservable inputs are disclosed in the tables below. Management regularly assesses a range of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant
unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the total fair value.

The fair values of the Company's interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using effective interest rate (EIR) method using discount

rate that reflects the issuer's borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as at 31 March 2023 was assessed
to be insignificant.

Long-term receivables/payables are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, risk factors, individual creditworthiness
of the counterparty and the risk characteristics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected
credit losses of these receivables.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy together with a
quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 March 2024, are as shown below:

Fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data




Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as on 31 March 2024

Carrying Value Fair Value

31 March 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets carried at amortized cost for
which fair value are disclosed
Trade Receivables 5,144.95 - - 5,144.95
Cash and cash equivalents 724.71 - - 724,71
Other bank balances 11,633.76 - - 11,633.76
Other Financial assets 55.58 - = 55.58
Investment in subsidiaries* 918B.93 - - 918.93
Investments 0.25 - - 0.25
Liahilities carried at amortized cost for
which fair value are disclosed
Trade Payables 6,953.88 - - 6,953.88
Other financial liabilities 600.46 - - 600.46
Lease Liability 16.29 - - 16.29
Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as on 31 March 2023

Carrying Value Fair Value

31 March 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets carried at amortized cost for
which fair value are disclosed
Trade Receivables 5,396.93 - = 5,396.93
Cash and cash eqguivalents 703.186 - - 703.16
Other bank balances 4,925.26 - - 4,925.26
Other Financial assets 4,748.32 - - 4,748.32
Investment in subsidiaries® 948.68 - - 948.68
Investments 0.25 - - 0.25
Liabilities carried at amortized cost for
which fair value are disclosed
Trade Payables 8,588.78 - B 8,588.78
Other financial liabilities 68.09 - . 68.09
Lease Liability 16.42 E - 16.42
Note:

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables and other current liabilities approximate their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

*Inyvestment In subsidiaries have been measured at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 "Separate Financial Statements"

(This place has been left blank intentionally)




Copmed Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the finandal statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

Fi ial risk t objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise trade and other payables, The main purpose of these finandial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations, The Company's
principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that are derived directly from its operations.

The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategles. The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.,

The C ¥'s senior gement oversees the management of these risks. The seniar pr waorking to ge the financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the
Company are accountable to the Board of Directors. This process provid e to Ci 's senlor m that the Company's financial risk-taking activities are governed by appropriate policies
and procedures and that financial risk are i T and r | in accordance with Campany policies and Company risk abjective,

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized as below:

(a) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will luctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprises three types of risk; currency rate risk, interest
rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commadity price risk, Financial instruments affected by market risks include loans and barrowings, deposits and foreign currency receivables and
payabies, The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at reporting date. The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and
ather post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-fi ial assets and liabll The sensitivity of the relevant Profit and Loss item and equity is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective
market risks, This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held as of 31 March 2024,

(i) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates,

(ii}) Interest Rate Risk

The Company is not exposed to any interest rate risk as it does not have financial assets or liabilities the value of which will be effected on account of change in market interest rates sxcept as
mentioned befow.

(iii) Commodity Price Risk
The Company is nol exposed to any other risk as it does not have firancial assets or liabilities the value of which will be effected on account of change in any other factor or risk.

b Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Camp has adopted a pelicy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and cbtalning sufficlent collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from d Its. The Comp regularly i its counterparty limits by reviewing the
outstanding balance and ageing of the sama,

Possible credit risk Credit risk management

Credit risk related to trade receivablas Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company If 3 customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to mest its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and investment securities. Credit risk s managed through
credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants cradit
termsz in the normal course of busi The Company estal an all e for doubtful debts and impairment that represents its estimate
of incurred lasses in respect of trade and other receivables and investments,

Recelvables are deemed to be past due or Imp d with refi e to the Ci ‘s normal terms and conditions of business. These terms
and conditions are determined on a case to case basis with reference to the customer's credit guality and prevailing market conditions.
Receivables that are classified as "past due’ in the above tables are those that have not been settled within the terms and conditions that have

been agreed with that customer.

Cradit risk related to bank balances Company holds bank balances with reputed and creditworthy banking institution within the approved exposures limit of each bank. Nane of the
Company's cash equivalents, including time deposits with banks, are past due or impalred,

The carrying value of financial assets other than cash represents the maximum credit exposure, The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets,

€) Liguidity

The Company requires funds both for short-term operational needs as well as for leng-term investment pregramme mainly in growth projects. The Company generates sufficient cash flows from the current
operations which together with the available cash and cash equivalents and short-term Investments provide liquidity both in the short-term as well as in the Jong-term,

The Company remains committed to maintalning a healthy liquidity, gearin, ratic, deleveraging and strengthening its balance sheet. The maturity prafile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on the
remaining period from the date of balance sheet to the contractual maturity date is given In the table below. The figures reflect the contractual undiscounted cash obligation of the Company.

As at 31 March 2024

Financial liabilities Less than 1 year 1to 5 years Taotal

Borrowings - = =
Trade payables 6,953.88 = 6,453.88
Other financial liabilities 600.46 GO0.46
Lease Liability 0.78 15.51 16.29
Total 7.,555.12 15.51 7.570.63

As at 31 March 2023

_Financial liabilities Less than 1 year 1to5 years Total

Borrowings - = =
Trade payables B,588.78 - B,588.78
Gther financial liabilities 68.09 - 68.05
Lease Liability 0.90 15,52 165,42
Total 8,657.77 15.52 8,673.29

Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes [Esued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the
Company's capital g is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages ks capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the reguirements of the financial covenants, if any. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company reviews the fund management at regular intervals and take necessary actions to maintain the requisite capital structure.

Mo changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,
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36 Leases

{i} The Company's lease asset primarlly consist of leases for land having lease term of 90 to 99 years,
(i) The weighted average Incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019 is 8.5%

(v}

{iv} Following is carrying value of right of use assets recogni and the mov 1ts thereof during the year ended March 31, 2024:

[Particulars Right of Use Asset
I Leasehold Land Totm
Balance as at April D1, 2022 115.82 112.66
Additlons during the year = -
Deletion during the year ! )
Depreciation of Right of use assets (refer note 29} {1.63) (1.63)
|Balance as at March 31, 2023 114.19 111.03
Balance as at April 01, 2023 114.19 114.19
Additions during the year =
Deletion during the year . 3
Depreciation of Riaht of use assets (refer note 297 (0.66) [0.667]
|Balance as at March 31, 2024 113,53 113.53
The following is the carrying value of [ease liability and mavement thersaf during the vear ended March 31, 2023:

(Rs in lacs)
[Particulars Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2022 16.57
Additions during the vear ¥
Finance cost accrued durina the yvear 1.3
Deletions =
Payment of lease liabilities (1.48)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 16.42
Additions during the vear =
Finance cost accrued during the vear 1.32
Deletions =
Payment of lease liabilities (1,453
Balance as at March 31, 2024 16.29
Current Lease liabllity (refer note 17) 0.78
Mon-Current Leasa Liability (refer note 17} 15,51

16.29

(vl

(wit)

(viii}

37

The maturity anaiysis of lease liabilities are disclosed as follow:
Maturity of lease liabilities

Set out below are the undiscounted petential future rental payments relating to periods:

Lease obligations

Mot later than one vear

Later than ane year and not later than five yvears
Later than five years

Interest expense

Mot later than ane year

Later than ane yvear and not later than five years
Later than five vears

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases are as follows:
Tha following are the ts rec ised in profit or loss:

Depreciation expense of riaht-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Expense relating to short-term leases
Expense relating to low value |eases

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1.20 1.20

6.52 a.64

33.73 35.55

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

1.28 1.27

6.43 6,42

17.46 19.07
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

0.66 1.63

1.32 1.31

3.51 o890

5.49 3.84

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to Its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility

As per provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has to Incur at l2ast 2% of average net profits of the preceding three financial years towards Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR").
Accordingly, a CSR committee has been formed for carrying out CSR activities as per the Schedule VIE of the Companies Act, 2013_Detalls are as under:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
21 March 2024 31 March2023
ils of CSR di X,
Gross amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the Act B6.49 61.53
Amount approved by the Board to be spant during the year 66,49 61.53
Amount spent during the perlod/vear on !
(1) Construction/ acquisition of assets = z
(i} On purpose other than above 66.49 61.53
Details related to spent / unspent obligations:
i1 Contribution to Public Trust =
(1Y Contribution to Charitable Trust 66,49 6153
(i} Unspent amount in relation to:
- Onaolng profect
- Other than ongoing project = = —
Total amount spent 66.49 61,53
Total tr ised in the it of profit and loss 66.49 61.53

Amount Yet to be spent / (Excess spent during the vear)
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The company has used exemption from consolidation as per IND AS 110 in respect of ts subsidiary "Vetbesta Labs" for the year ended March 31, 2024 as it complies with the following conditions:

i) The Company is a partially-owned subsidiary of Mankind Pharma Limited and all its other members do not object to the company not presenting consolidated financial statements;

i) The Company |5 not listed nor in the process of listing en any stock exchange, whether in India or outside India.
i} The ultimate holding company i.e. Mankind Pharma Limited files consolidated Financial Statements with the Registrar.

39 Ratio analysis and its elements
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Ratio Numerator Denominator 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 % Change Remarks
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 3.12 1.93 61.56 % Refer to remark 1 below
Debt Service Earnings for debt service = Net Debt service = Interest & 0.00 234.46 100.00 % Refer to remark 2 below
Coverage ratio profit after taxes -+ Non-cash Lease Payments + Principal
gperating expenses Repavments
Return on Equity  Met Profits after taxes — Preference  Average Shareholder's 20.74% 15.60% 32.96 % Refer to remark 3 below
ratio Dividend Equity
Inventory Turnover Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 6.27 4.64 35.08 % Refer to remark 4 below
ratic
Trade Receivable  Net credit sales = Gross credit sales - Average Trade Receivable B.53 6.04 41.26 % Refer to remark 5 below
Turnover Ratio sales return
Trade Payable Net credit purchases = Gross credit  Average Trade Payables 4.71 3.10 52.03 % Refer to remark 6 below
Turnover Ratio purchases - purchase return
Net Capital Net sales = Total sales - sales return Working capital = Current 272% 421% {35.31%) Refer to remark 7 below
Turnover Ratio assels - Current liabilities
MNet Profit ratio Net Profit Met sales = Total sales - 9% 8% 23.99 % Refer to remark B below
sales return
Return on Capital  Earnings before interest and taxes  Capital Employed = Tangible 25% 19% 27.10 % Refer to remark 9 below
Employed Net Worth + Total Debt +
Deferred Tax liabality
Return on Interest (Finance Income) Tnvestment £3.02% 27.08% 95.79 % Refer to remark 10 below
Investment
Remarks

1. Current ratio has increased primarily due to bank deposit increased.

2. Debt Service Coverane ratio has increased primarily due to interest and principal payment made during the year whereas no such payment in correspending year.

3. Return on equity ratio has increased primarily on account of increase in sales and profitability during the year.

4, Inventory Turnover ratio has increased primarily due to Increase in cost of goods sold during the current year. The said increase in accompanied by decrease in average inventory.

5. Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio has increased primarily due to increase in revenue from operations during the year. The said increase s accompanied by decrease in average trade receivable during
&. Trade Payable Turnover Ratig has increased primarily due to increase in cost of goods sold during the year, The said increase s accompanied by decrease in average trade payable during the year.
7. Net Capital Turnover Ratio has decrsased primarily on account of increase of bank depost.

8. Met Profit ratio has increased primarily on account of increase in profitability during the year,

9, Return on Capital Employed has increased primarily on account of increase in profitability during the year.

10. Return on investment has increased primarily due to increase In profit of investment made in partnership firm during the year.
11. The ratios which are not applicable to the firm have not been disclosed abave,

Asset classified held for sale

Management has committed to a plan to sell the following assests in near future :
Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Capital Work in Proaress

Gross Carrying value = 12,78
Impairment loss recognised on the re-measurement to # =
fair value less cost to sell

- 12.78

The management of the Company has decided not to install certain machines due to change in project plan and therefore capital work in progress containing the aforesaid machines has been classified
as "Assets held for sale™ during the current year and are measured at lower of its carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell. Fair value of the assels were determined using the market approach.

Tatal impairment loss recognised on the re-measurement o fair value less cost to sell amounting to Rs Nil/- millions has been taken to Statement of Profit and Loss.
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The Company has used accounting software far maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data for users with certain privileged accass rights and also for certain changes made
using privileged/ administrative access right. Further, in respect of a used for of i for select audit trail feature was not enabled. Further no Instance of audit
trail feature being tampered with was noted in respect of other accounting software

Other Information
(1) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

(i1} The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

(liiy The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persan(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Inter ) with the und, g that the Intermediary shall:
(a)directly or indirectly lend or invest In other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b)provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficlaries

(v} The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(les), including forelgn entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwlse) that the

Company shall;

(a) directly or Indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities Identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

{v) The Company have nat any such tr which is not ded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961
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